Willows Library Board Board.of Trustees

Dan Gupton, President

of Trustees Meeting ol bettancourt, seeretory

Brian Ramos, Trustee
December 11, 2025 Vacant, Trustee
Willows Civic Center, Eubanks Room Matt Busby, City Council Liaison
11:00 AM

City Librarian
201 North Lassen Street Christine Watson

Willows, CA 95988 Age N d ad

(530) 934-7041

1. CALLTO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

S

PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM

The Public Comment Forum is an opportunity to address the Board of Trustees on any matter for which another
opportunity to speak is not provided on the agenda, and which is within the purview of the Willows Library Board
to resolve. Any interested members of the public wishing to communicate with the Board of Trustees may do so
by contacting the Board President at the beginning of the meeting. For questions about any agenda items, please
contact Christine Watson, City Librarian, cwatson@cityofwillows.org.

a. Minutes Approval
Recommended Action: Approve the amended August 28, 2025, meeting minutes.

b. Minutes Approval
Recommended Action: Approve the October 16, 2025, meeting minutes.

5. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR
All matters on the Discussion & Action Calendar will be discussed and acted on individually. Individuals wishing
to speak on any of these items should request to be acknowledged by the Board President. Comments should
be directed to the Board of Trustees and are limited to three minutes. By law, the Board of Trustees cannot
discuss or take action on items not listed on the posted agenda.

a. The Five Principles of Public Library Trusteeship
Recommended Action: Discuss the five principles of public library trusteeship outlined in the
2023 California Public Library Trustee Toolkit and direct staff on how to implement them.

b. Willows Public Library Update
Recommended Action: Discuss the recent achievements and upcoming goals for the Willows
Public Library over the next 60 days.

6. COMMENTS & REPORTS

a. Friends of the Willows Public Library Report



b. Board of Trustees Comments & Reports

10. ADJOURNMENT

This agenda was posted on December 5, 2025.

Christine Watson, City Librarian

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Willows will make available to members of the public any special assistance
necessary to participate in this meeting. If requested, the agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132). The public should contact the City Clerk’s
office at (530) 934-7041 to make such a request. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements

to ensure accessibility to this meeting.

The City of Willows is an Equal Opportunity Provider.



PUBLIC COMMENT &
CONSENT CALENDAR
FORUM



Agenda ltem #4a

Willows Library Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes

August 28, 2025, Willows Library, Eubank Room 11:00 A.M.

Call to Order-11:05 A.M.

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call Trustees Present: Chair Dan Gupton, Vice- Chair Brandon, Trustees Ramos,

Bettencourt and Kennedy

Public Comment

a. Action to approve Bettencourt’s (acting secretary) Minutes of July 24, 2025 Meeting.
Moved/Seconded Trustee Ramos/Vice-Chair Brandon

Discussion and Action calendar
a. Library Flooring

Joe Bettencourt presented flooring options A-D for back room. Due to the ongoing
ceiling repair, it was presented that holding off on purchasing any type of flooring may
be a good decision until we go through a winter and are sure of no leaks. Brian Ramos
had mentioned that 8 yrs. ago the Friends of the Library had donated $400.00 to deep
clean and buff the floor. Marti Brown offered the city could do that again, funds coming
from the city to pay for this.

b. New Computers

Christine Watson, the new Library Director, has the invoice for five Dell CPU towers with
an estimate of 10-15 hours to install. Total cost $4,119.95 before tax and shipping. Chair
Gupton said it would still be well below the allotted $14,000 that the board had
approved earlier. Christine Watson and Matt Busby commented that there would need
to be more robust power and memory with additional specs. The City will be ordering
the new library computers through the city’s supplier. Christine will be working with the
city I.T. vendor and bring back a revised quote with more details for the October
meeting.

Also mentioned was that the Microsoft software and license expires in October.
c. City Librarian Update

Christine Watson reported many things about the changes needed and her plan for
doing so like training staff, getting new patrons from all age brackets, and a major
cleaning effort among other items. It was mentioned that the collection of boxes and
disarray was due to the backroom ceiling collapse forcing that room unusable and
inaccessible. She had a great concern for the Eubank room having many things like
technology and computer parts in the same space as children’s activities. Because there



is no sink to use for children’s crafts and activities in the Eubank room, she wants to use
the back room for these types of activities where there is a sink.

d. Library Consulting

City manager, Marti Brown informed the Library Board that the Council was divided
and, therefore, | never brought it to them and was bringing it back to the Board for
discussion and consideration. Christine Watson said that after looking at the proposal
topics, she had all the skill sets and would not need a consultant.

e. Trust Funds

Vice-Chair Ardythe Brandon asked about a $5,000 discrepancy in account #209. Joanne
from finance was there and did not know why it showed that. She said it could be a data
entry error, noting she was not the one who entered the data. Marti said that they
would get the answers and have a report in October to address this.

f. History of Trust Funds and Use Funds

Chair Gupton said that he wanted clarity on this topic of trust fund use and is waiting for
legal information from the State Library Board. This could be in written form from his
contact in time for the regular October Library Board meeting. Trustee Ramos passed
out the Last Will and Testament of Francis Laurel King as well as the Will of Elizabeth Mc
Dole.

g. Library Board Education

Christine passed out five different items:

“Toolkit” for California Public Library Trustees
Rosenburg’s Rules of Order (2011)

A guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act

Parliamentary Procedure for Meetings

The City of Willows Fiscal Year 2025-26 Operating Budget.

She mentioned that the Rosenberg’s Rules of Order is more contemporary and easier

than Robert’s Rules of Order, and that these will be on the next agenda. City Manager,
Marti Brown, said there may be a training on the Brown Act during the October board
meeting, and the city attorney would be in touch with Chair Gupton on that.



Comments and Reports

a. Friends of the Willows Public Library

The next book sale will be in the main library on September 11 from 11:00-6:00 and Friday,

Sept. 12 from 11:00-5:00. Brian also gave Christine the application for a grant that is offered
from the Willows Thrift Shop. Jodi Meza, former director, had received as much as $2000.00
and before that $1,500 from this donation/grant used for children’s services.

The Chamber of Commerce told Brian that December 6™ will be the Christmas Faire where we
will set up a booth to sell books, 95% are children’s. Gupton told everyone that they’re like new
and make excellent Christmas gifts.

In response to our excess of boxes and book donations AND as a regular practice, Brian Ramos,
Friends of the Library, recently donated books to Willows Care, the Willows Jail and Willows
Pediatric Group.

Due to Lisa Kennedy’s busy schedule with family and having served 15-16 years on the Library
Board, she announced that she is stepping down. Matt Busby, liaison to the City Council,
expressed interest, but the city would post the opening on the city website.

Doug Ross having been on the library board in the past and representing the press, not the
public was concerned about the issue of two sets of minutes brought up earlier last month. He
had questions regarding this issue. The entire board of library trustees had voted to use
Bettencourt’s minutes as she was the acting secretary at the July 24th board meeting before
the hiring of the new Library Director. Chair Gupton, Brandon, and Marti Brown clarified the
two sets of minutes. Marti noted one being discussion minutes and the other action minutes.

Meeting adjourned at 12:25

Next meeting is scheduled October 16™.

Bettencourt took the minutes for this meeting August 28, 2025 and will submit them to the
new library director within three working days.



Agenda Item #4b

Willows Library Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes

October 16, 2025, Willows Library, Eubank Room 11:00 A.M.

1. Calltoorder-11:02 a.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call of Trustees Present: Chair Gupton, Vice-Chair Brandon, Trustees, Ramos and
Bettencourt. City Council members Lori Pride and Matt Busby, liaison, Joe Bettencourt
filling in for Marti Brown and member of the public, Jim Bettencourt

4. Public Comment
a. Action to approve minutes of Aug. 28, 2025 moved/seconded Ramos/Bettencourt

5 a.Joint Meeting with City Council (proposed by city manager)

Brandon suggested it be removed from the agenda due to already being on the agenda three
times. Moved/seconded Brandon/Ramos Chair-Gupton said that he is waiting for a response
from the State Library Board. The library board’s questions were sent to the legal department
regarding this matter. For the last 14 years the library has had their board meetings in the
Eubank room with Director Jodi Meza without problems. “Since her departure we have only
had obstacles and opposition”, Brandon said, and “We have not been able to move forward.”

b. Vacant Position on the Library Board

The library board reiterated that the vacant position left when Lisa Kennedy resigned was to be
flown to the community but has not yet been posted on the city website. Much discussion was
about Matt Busby taking the vacant position and the candidates who have not been able to apply.
The last meeting minutes showed that the position was going to be “flown” to the public.
Brandon said that Marti Brown had told Ardythe to remove her comment about looking for a
new library board member on “What’s Happening in Willows”. Discussion continued about the
past practice and the legal purview regarding this matter. Brandon said to Matt to tell the city
council to post the position on the city website. Matt Busby agreed and said, “Ok”.

5. c. Use of Trust Funds

After hearing the library board’s wishes and their awaiting word from the State Library Board on
this matter, Joe Bettencourt suggested it be tabled. “The lines are blurry in our roles”, said Busby
and Gupton. Ardythe mentioned overstep and doesn’t want to be reprimanded by the city. Brian
Ramos said the dollar amount in Christine’s report does not match with the city’s account #209
in their 6/20/25 report.

d. Public Computer Fund

There was no new information regarding the previous fund balance discrepancy for account
#209. Dan Gupton said that the board was promised an answer by City Manager, Marti Brown



and the finance director at the Aug. 28 th meeting that we would get an explanation in our
October board meeting.

Christine said that she had asked Joanne in finance to run a clean report of the account. The
original $7,000 on June 20, 2025 was now showing $300 according to the “Detail Report, Account
Detail” 7/01/24 -6/30/25, two pages provided. Brandon suggested an outside auditor due to the
still unexplained missing $5,000 from account #209. Joe Bettencourt said he would look into it.

e. Library Technology Evaluation

Christine presented her packet of information related to the status of technology in the
library and upgrades needed in the Eubank room, the lobby, the children’s room and the
back room. She explained in detail the need for a mounted projector in the Eubank Room
with a dedicated lap top, a smart t.v. and the need to remove all the old technology.

Christine said that the money to pay for this would come from ‘Impact funding’,
development fees paid to the city in the planning phase with the city engineer. The fees get
approved by the city council. The number $147,000 was given when asked how much was in
the library impact fund.

f. Library Update

Christine presented the other half of her packet reporting on grants, acquisitions,
renovations, children’s programming, budget balances, data about patrons, computer
usage, analysis and a plan for a new desktop computer and the back room. The new Willows
Library FB page is now called ‘Willows Pub Lib’.

g. Holding Library Board Meetings in City Council Chambers

A controversial discussion took place. It was tabled until the next meeting.

h. Library Staff Luncheon

Brian Ramos said it would be the fifth year where the Friends of the Library thank the library
employees and library volunteers with a luncheon. Requested from Christine were two
possible dates in December when Lisa Kennedy and Ginger Flowerdew could also attend.

i. Board Education-Brown Act Training with City Attorney
Library board was in agreement for setting a date with the city attorney for the Brown Act
Training.

Comments and Reports



a. Friends of the Library Report
A book sale is scheduled Saturday, December 6, 9:00- 2:00 in the breezeway by Ace

Hardware. 95% are children’s mint condition books ideal for Christmas gifts.
There will also be a $2.00 a bag book sale in December inside the library.

Christine said she would not be able to accept funds from the Friends of the Library unless
the status was updated as a 501 (c)(3). She said that Pilcrow requires this of her. Ramos

asked if this was a state or city policy. Christine said it was city.
Brian said he would work on getting current on a 501(c) (3).

The next meeting is scheduled for December 11. Christine said she would try to get an audit

of the computer fund for the dollar figure discrepancy.

Meeting adjourned 12:35



DISCUSSION & ACTION
CALENDAR



Agenda Item 5a

Date: December 11, 2025

To: Library Board of Trustees
From: Christine Watson City Librarian
Subject: Library Board Roles

Recommendation:

Discuss the five principles of public library trusteeship outlined in the 2023 California Public Library
Trustee Toolkit.

Rationale for Recommendation:

To ensure the Library Board of Trustees agrees and understands their role as board members and can
discuss their interpretation of the recommended ‘golden rules’ to foster and guide the success of the
library board.

Background:

The City Librarian requested the Library Board to read and review the California Public Library Trustee
Toolkit. Upon request of Ardythe Brandon, Library Board Vice President, the City Librarian added the
topic to the next meeting agenda.

Discussion & Analysis:

The City Librarian will review the five principles of public library trusteeship with the library board and
discuss their interpretation. The Library Board will come to an agreement on how to best implement
actions to adopt these principles.

Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact by discussing the principles and role of a California public library trustee.
Attachments:

e Attachment 1: California Public Library Trustee Toolkit



Attachment 1

California Public Library Trustees Toolkit

Introduction

For many Californians, the public library is a fundamental part of their existence. Along with
free access to print and digital collections, it offers a civic and cultural engagement space, a
place for workforce preparedness and educational pursuits, a technology hub, a safe place, and
a center of community life. People turn to libraries for many reasons—to find answers to
specific questions, to explore new ideas, to find out how to do something, to find a job, to get
connected to community services, to connect with others, or just to enjoy themselves.
California is one of the most diverse places in the world, and the needs and aspirations of its
communities are many.

California’s public libraries are equally diverse, ranging from libraries that are among the largest
in the nation (such as the Los Angeles Public Library and the LA County Library, serving almost
eight million people between them) to some of the smallest, such as Alpine County Library and
Irwindale Public Library, serving less than 1500 people each. Administration and governance
vary greatly for these libraries that serve many different types of communities and geographies.

In all these communities, public library boards play a pivotal role, in that they were created to
represent the people in public library governance. They are central to a library’s relationship
with its community. When library boards are successful, libraries are successful! This toolkit is
designed to provide the core information and resources needed to help California public library
trustees make a difference.

This toolkit is not intended as a comprehensive guide, but as an overview of the basic
information needed by trustees to be effective. This toolkit is written for the use of both
governing and advisory boards, but given the many variances in California state and local library
laws and governance, trustees should be aware that not all the information provided and
practices described may apply to them. The toolkit was developed as an educational tool and
is not intended to replace legal advice. We recommend that trustees consult legal counsel with
guestions about applying the law in their own situations.

Please note that in this publication the word “trustee” refers to public library trustees,
commissioners, council members, or any other term used for a public library board member.
“Library board” refers to public library boards, commissions, councils, etc. Note also that the
term “jurisdiction” refers to the government to which the public library belongs (city or county).

Principles of public library trusteeship

Practitioners around the nation have identified sets of trustee competencies and “golden rules” to
foster and guide the success of public library boards. These are synthesized here into five main
principles:



1) Trustees should understand, believe in, and commit to the educational,
informational, community and economic development, and recreational roles of the
public library and their mission as trustees.

2) Trustees should know the scope of the library board’s powers and its role compared
to those of the library director and friends/foundations groups.

3) Trustees should know the tenets, laws and rules that govern and guide the board’s
proceedings and conduct of business.

4) Trustees should understand and be prepared to carry out the duties of the library
board regarding library planning, leadership, policies, and budgeting.

5) Trustees should recognize the importance of continuing education for the library
board and participate in ongoing learning opportunities.

This toolkit will provide an overview and discussion of these principles and provide the basic
practical and ideological information that California public library trustees need to be
productive during their tenure in office. It offers advice, guidance, resources, and best practices
and may be used as a reference for both trustees and library directors.

Public libraries are faced with a rapidly changing social, political, cultural, and technological
environment. At the same time, they have never been more vital for California’s communities.
Trustees must be prepared to take on the exciting yet demanding role of helping to position
their libraries as fundamental resources for individual and community success.

“These days, a branch librarian might run story hour in the morning, assist with a research
project at lunchtime, and in the afternoon administer life-saving medical aid to a patron
who’s overdosed.” — From “The complicated role of the modern public library,” Humanities
Magazine (National Endowment for the Humanities, Fall 2019.

Principle 1.

Trustees should understand, believe in, and commit to the educational, informational,
community and economic development, and recreational roles of the public library and their
mission as trustees.

Public libraries have long offered free access to books and other information resources. But in
today’s environment they provide so much more. On a given day in a California public library,
you might see children and caregivers engaging in library storytimes; summer lunch being
served to school children when school lunch programs are not available; teens getting
homework help and connecting with friends; students using high-speed broadband to do
academic research; immigrants learning about local resources and getting language skills; the
unemployed getting skills training and help in finding a job; entrepreneurs exploring how to
create successful businesses; veterans connecting to benefits and places to shelter; people
taking part in arts and cultural programming; the unhoused being connected to shelter and
community services; and more. In a state where drought, wildfires and unpredictable weather
have become the norm, many libraries also fill the critical roles of warming center, cooling
center and clean air haven.



All these activities require resources, and library budgets are not unlimited. The engagement
and knowledge of the library board is critical to help identify and prioritize the programs and
services needed by the community, and to help manage and develop the funds and
partnerships needed to fulfill them, for the continuous improvement of the public library. This
is, essentially, the central mission of the library board.

Thus, a successful library board starts with engaged and informed trustees. At the outset,
trustees should understand and believe in the various roles of the public library that they serve
and embrace the opportunities and challenges those roles present. Library trustees come to
their positions as community leaders with their own views on the public library and the services
it should offer. Trustees should challenge their assumptions and reach out to the library
director and administration; to other trustees; to neighboring libraries; and to state and
national experts and resources, to learn about the public library, what it does, and what it can
be and do, recognizing the very real resources that it takes to provide library services.

The library director and fellow trustees are the first and richest sources of information that a
library trustee should consult. Trustees should ensure that they are connecting with the
director and the others on the board, and that they are familiar with the library’s current
mission, vision, and strategic plan. Trustees must visit and use the library; attend programs; and
connect with the staff and the community.

A trustee should be prepared to commit the time and effort needed to engage fully in the
board process (prepare for, attend, and contribute to all board meetings; serve on committees;
communicate with stakeholders). Being a trustee means holding a position in public trust; the
people that trustees represent deserve the best job they can do. Trustees who are not able to
offer that should let someone else have their position at the table.

There are many resources that library trustees may consult to learn more about the role of
today’s public libraries and about trusteeship. A recent influential work by library thought
leader and scholar R. David Lankes, Expect More: Demanding Better Libraries for Today’s
Complex World, was written for people who support and oversee libraries, such as library
trustees. It focuses on the library’s role in the community it serves and provides an aspirational
description of what the library can be and how it can get there.

Major organizations that offer resources to support California public libraries and trustees
include (but are not limited to):

e The American Library Association (ALA) (the major national organization for libraries)

e United for Libraries (an ALA division created for library trustees, friends and
foundations, and a respected national source of information and resources)

e The California Library Association (California’s statewide library association)

e The California State Library offers many services and funding opportunities for public
libraries.



https://davidlankes.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/ExpectMoreOpen.pdf
https://davidlankes.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/ExpectMoreOpen.pdf
https://www.ala.org/
https://www.ala.org/united/
https://www.cla-net.org/
https://www.library.ca.gov/

These organizations and others are referred to throughout this toolkit. Consult the Trustee
Resource Guide for more comprehensive information.

Ask yourself (Principle 1):

1. What is the central mission of the library board?

2. Name at least three reasons why legislators and residents should support your
public library.

3. What can trustees consult regularly to keep informed about library issues?

What resources would you recommend to a new trustee, or someone interested in
becoming a new trustee, to learn more about the public library?

5. How can you stay aware of city, county, and state news and issues, to see how they
relate to the library?
6. Can you tell at least one story about how your public library has changed the lives of

its users for the better?

Principle 2.
Trustees should know the scope of their library board’s powers and its role compared to those
of the library director and library friends/foundation groups.

To be effective, trustees must understand the scope of their board’s powers. Without this
understanding, trustees may end up misusing their time working on issues over which they
have no real control.

Online sources for California state & local library laws

e C(California Legislative Information (Leginfo)—California Constitution and Codes

e California Library Laws (California State Library)

e Municode California

e Local Codes and Charters (U.C. Berkeley Institute of Governmental Studies Library)

e C(California Resources—Local Governments (Georgetown University Law Library)

A public library’s legal authority, along with its local historical and political circumstances,
shapes who controls the library and makes decisions about its activities, what revenues will
support library services and facilities and how library funds will be spent.

In California, public libraries are the responsibility of local government. Localities are not
required to form public libraries, but there are a number of state laws and constitutional
provisions under which they may do so. These laws outline discrete types of governance,
funding, and service areas, and are generally permissive rather than proscriptive in nature
(though state laws regarding trustee powers are more defined in the case of special district and
county law libraries). This means that public library laws, including those about library boards,
vary significantly throughout the state, depending on the type of public library and local
ordinances.

It is recognized that there are two main types of library boards: governing and advisory. All
California public libraries report to a governing body. Depending on the laws under which the


https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org
https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes.xhtml
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/library-laws/
https://library.municode.com/ca
https://www.igs.berkeley.edu/library/california-local-government-documents/codes-and-charters
https://guides.ll.georgetown.edu/c.php?g=275786&p=1838520

library was established, sometimes the governing authority is the county board of supervisors
or city council, and sometimes there is a specific library governing board. In most cases, where
the county or city governs the library, there is an elected or appointed library advisory board.
Many libraries with a library governing board also have a community advisory board that
provides input and assistance for library governance and operations. County libraries which
serve several cities may have multiple community advisory boards.

A governing board is either elected by the general population or appointed by the jurisdictional
government. An advisory board may be appointed or elected. The main difference between
them is that a governing board always has the legal responsibility for hiring and evaluating the
library director and for the library’s finances, while an advisory board does not.

Additional duties for governing boards include determining the mission, vision, and strategic
plan for the library; setting the policies governing the library; and providing general
administrative oversight (board responsibilities will be covered in depth later). However, in
many cases some or most of these functions may be handled by an advisory board, as the
power and authority of a California library advisory board may fall anywhere along a continuum
from advisory to all-but-governing in nature.

Trustees must understand where their board’s authority lies on that continuum. The board’s
powers are largely determined by local law and by the understanding established over time
between the board and the local jurisdiction. For a full picture of the legal basis of their powers,
trustees should consult their local ordinances, bylaws, and their board’s legal counsel.

In California, there are five types of public libraries, as follows:

e  County libraries. County libraries are organized under the County Free Library Law
(Education Code §19100-19180). The County Service Area Law (Government Code §25210-
25217.4) allows for the creation of a separate legal entity for library services, but in
practice this law is used to create a separate funding mechanism for unincorporated areas
within an existing county library system.

e City libraries. City libraries are organized under the Municipal Library Law (Education Code
§18900-18965), or for charter cities, under the constitutional “home rule doctrine”
(California Constitution Article XI, §3), pursuant to a charter adopted by the city’s voters.

e Independent special district libraries. Independent special district libraries may be
organized under one of the following laws: The Library District Law (Education Code
§19400-19532); The Library and Museum District Law (for unincorporated towns and
villages; Education Code §19600-19734); Unified School Districts/Union High School
Districts Public Libraries Law (Education Code §18300-18571); and the Community Services
District (CSD) Law (Government Code §61000-61250).

e Joint powers of authority (JPA) libraries. JPA libraries operate by agreement between the
governing boards of two or more governmental entities, pursuant to the Joint Exercise of
Powers Act (Government Code §6500-6599.3). A member of a JPA may also be organized
separately as a county, city, or independent special district library.



e County law libraries were legally designated as public libraries by the state of California in
2015 (Education Code §19307). These libraries are formed under the County Law Library
Law (Business and Professions Code §6300-6363).

The table below shows the types of public libraries in California, the state laws under which
they are formed, and typical characteristics of the library board as outlined in state law. Note
that there are local variances; for example, the law permits cities and counties to contract with
each other for library services, thus a “city library” may serve the whole county.

Library type | Formed under which state | Type of library | Number of board members Powers
law or constitutional board in state | constitution of board outlined in
provision law state law
County County Free Library Act Advisory Varies by local law, usually Varies by local
library (Education Code §19100- (county board | includes representation from all law
19180) of supervisors | local communities or county
governs) districts
City library Municipal Library Law Governing, but | 5 (may include additional ex- Education Code
(Education Code §18900- varies by local | officio/non-voting members) §18910-18927
18965) law*
City library City charter formed under | Varies by Varies by charter provisions No provision in
the “home rule” doctrine charter state law
(Constitution Article XI, §3) | provisions
Special Library District Law Governing Either 3 or 5, depending on the Education Code
district (Education Code §19400- original petition establishing the §19460-19483
library 19532) district (see Education Code
§19402)
Special Library and Museum Governing 5 (Education Code §19611) Education Code
district District Law (Education §19640-19664
library Code §19600-19734)
Independent | Unified School Governing (if District board may establish a Education Code
special Districts/Union High commission library commission consisting of 5 | §18400-18411
district School Districts Public established, if | members (Education Code
library Libraries Law (Education not district §18440)
Code §18300-18571) board
governs)
Independent | Community Services Governing Either 3 or 5, depending on the Government
special District Law (Government original petition establishing the Code §61100(k)
district Code §61000-61250 district (Education Code §19402 or | (powers same
library Education Code §19611). as in library
district laws)
Joint powers | Government Code §6500- Governing Dependent on JPA contract Dependent on

of authority | 6599.3 (dependent on JPA contract

(JPA) library JPA contract)

County law Business and Professions Governing 3-7 depending on number of Business &

libraries (BPC) Code §6300-6363 county superior court judges Professions
(membership specifically spelled Code §6340-
out in BPC §6301-6301.5) 6350

* The Municipal Library Law designates the library board as governing, but a city council may appoint its own
members as the library board and create an advisory board to help govern the library system.




California public library trustees serve as unpaid volunteers, though they are typically
compensated for travel and continuing education expenses. The Municipal Library Law allows
for compensation of trustees (limited to S50 per month), but this practice is not followed.

The role of the board vs. the role of the library director. All library boards should understand
their role in respect to that of the library director. Though governing boards generally have
more direct oversight over library operations than advisory boards, all have a duty to work
cooperatively with library management and respect and support the director’s role.

Library boards are charged with fiduciary and administrative oversight and establishing policy
and long-term plans for the library (or advising on these to the governing body). The board
hires (or may advise on the hire of) the library director, but the director has the delegated
responsibility for managing the library and its daily operations. It is the director’s
responsibility, not the board’s, to employ and supervise the library staff, manage the library
collection, implement programming, supervise day-to-day operations, apply policies, and
oversee procedures. The board’s role, and that of the director, are obviously intertwined, but
the board should abide by the following “golden guidelines” in dealing with the library director
and library staff (adapted from the Washington State library trustees wiki):

e Boards should not try to run or manage their libraries; they should provide oversight (or
advice, in the case of advisory boards). Micromanaging is a temptation board members
must avoid.

¢ Individual board members have no authority; authority lies with the board as a whole.

e Boards should always support the library director and library staff in public.

e Boards should not disregard advice or suggestions from the library director out of hand.

e Boards should never serve as a communication link between the staff and the director;
the community and the staff; the jurisdictional government and the library. These are all
the responsibility of the library director.

¢ The board should not try to dominate the director; the director should not try to
dominate the board. Neither should try to undermine the other. It is not a competition.
Both parties should remember their ultimate purpose - to serve the needs of their
community.

“The partnership between board and director works best when their separate roles and
responsibilities are clearly understood and mutually respected.” In “When Small is All,”
American Libraries Magazine, December 2010.

The role of the library board vs. the role of the library friends, foundation, or similar support
groups. Public library friends groups are independent organizations created to support the work
of the library and board of trustees, not to engage in that work or take on those responsibilities.
These groups focus on fundraising, advocacy, and volunteer work. Library friends groups should
have a separate and distinct corporate existence, with separate federal tax exemption and
funding. Depending on local needs, library friends may, for example:

e Create public support and awareness for the library and its programs



e Raise funds to support items not in the library budget

e Work for library legislation or increased appropriations

e Sponsor and support library programs and events

e Volunteer to work in the library, or on library-related projects

While a friends group may handle incidental fundraising, foundations are usually established
when there is a need to solicit major contributions for capital projects or large-scale programs
that support the library’s mission and vision, cooperating rather than competing with library
priorities. Foundations tend to be more complex in their legal organization due to tax laws and
regulations.

Trustees should work cooperatively with friends groups and foundations, ensuring that their
supportive role is understood and appreciated. The board may consider including
representatives from library friends/foundation groups and having those groups report or
present at board meetings. United for Libraries and others provide some excellent advice for
working with friends, see the Resource Guide.

Ask yourself (Principle 2):

1. What type of public library do | serve? Under which state law was it formed, and
what are the local laws? Why do these

2. On which type of library board do | serve (governing or advisory)? What are the
primary differences between these types?

3. What is the most important thing for trustees to remember in working with the
library director?

4, What is the primary role of a library friends or foundation group? How does it

compare to the role of my library board?

Principle 3.

Trustees should know the tenets, laws and rules that govern and guide the board’s
proceedings and conduct of business.

As stated earlier, the library board’s authority comes from the board acting as a whole;
individual members have no authority. The board must function well as a team to exercise its
powers successfully. Every effective team abides by principles and rules put in place to guide its
conduct of business. It is important that trustees know what these rules are, and what
provisions might be put in place, to facilitate the work of the board and ensure that it is
following federal, state, and local laws and ethical practices for trustee conduct.

Bylaws.

Most library boards have adopted bylaws that provide the framework for their proceedings.
These bylaws must be consistent with local and state laws. Bylaws are a mechanism for library
boards to establish rules and routines that govern their actions. At a minimum they should
include:


https://www.ala.org/united/sites/ala.org.united/files/content/trustees/tipsheets/The%20Role%20of%20the%20Friends%20Board.pdf
https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org

e The library board officers to be elected, methods of election, length of their terms and
the powers and responsibilities of each officer

e When meetings are held, and how meetings are conducted

e Definition of a quorum and attendance requirements

e The standing committees to be appointed, method of appointment, and what they do

e Provision for amending bylaws

e Provision for term limits

e Provision for calling special meetings

e Provision for removing a board member with reasonable cause and appointing new
members

e Provision for reviewing bylaws at least every three years

As bylaws are fundamental to effective library board operations, boards must be careful when
amending existing bylaws or developing new ones. Bylaw language should be clear and
unambiguous. Reviewing bylaws adopted by other similar boards can be helpful. See the
Resource Guide for sample bylaws and further guidance.

A well-balanced board:

e Rapport with the whole community
e Occupational diversity

e Political acumen and influence

e Business/financial experience

o Legal knowledge

e Diversity

e Varied personal backgrounds

Trustees should understand the roles, assignments and the expectations for officers,
committees, and individual trustees that are outlined in their board’s bylaws. This goes doubly
when it comes to the recruitment of new trustees. Each trustee brings certain strengths, skills,
talents, and experience to the table. Vacancies on the board should be rotated and the board
should work to recruit members who represent a broad spectrum of community interests,
occupations, and geographic areas, to help ensure the library will serve the total community.

Given the reality that boards are appointed or elected by a number of people and politics may
be involved, the board should endeavor to see that it is widely recognized that the board
should be competency-based. Candidates for library trustee positions should be given a written
statement of the duties and responsibilities of membership on the library board, and these
statements should also be made available to those who elect/appoint trustees.

Effective meetings.

Effective meetings start with an agenda and related packet of background materials, distributed
to the board well before the meeting (at least one week ahead is the recommendation from
United for Libraries). Agenda development works best as a collaboration between the board
president and the library director, as the director knows best about the current hot issues.



https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org
https://www.ala.org/united/sites/ala.org.united/files/content/trustees/trustee_academy/effective-meetings-trustees.pdf

Agenda items are often designated as either “discussion” items” (those requiring discussion
from the board) and “consent” items (those items that are routine, procedural, informational,
non-controversial).

“A good agenda is the best tool you have for ensuring that a meeting goes smoothly, that all
issues of importance are adequately addressed, and that everyone has an opportunity to
contribute thoughts and ideas.” From Effective Meetings for Library Boards of Trustees (United
for Libraries, 2012)

The board’s bylaws often will specify the order of business on the agenda. To comply with the
Brown Act (this will be discussed later), agendas must include an item for public comment.
Boards often include information on the agenda about how public comment is conducted, so
that members of the public can be prepared. This information may be included in Spanish
and/or other languages, to accommodate community needs.

To move the meeting along, it’s helpful to allot specific times for each item, and to specify
which items need discussion or action. Besides standard agenda items such as welcome and
introductions and approval of minutes, library board agendas often include a director’s report,
friends/foundation reports, budget review or planning, library policy discussion, and an item for
board education. Many boards find an agenda building item added toward the end of the
meeting to be helpful in trustee engagement.

Putting together and distributing the agenda packet usually rests with the library director and
staff, though this is not always the case, especially in larger institutions. The packet normally
includes the agenda as the first item, the minutes of the previous meeting, and any written
reports, statistics, or other background material for the action items on the agenda, including
new or changed policies or spending proposals. The Resource Guide includes agenda and board
packet examples and further guidelines for effective meetings.

The board should have a yearly business calendar that notes board meeting dates and holidays
and also at what point in the year regular business items such as director performance
appraisals or library budget review, discussions and decisions should take place.

“The people of this State do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies which serve them. The
people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what is good
for the people to know and what is not good for them to know. The people insist on remaining
informed so that they may retain control over the instruments they have created.” —Ralph M.
Brown Act

Sunshine laws.

California has specific open meeting and records laws which apply to local boards and
commissions, including library trustees. These include the Brown Act (open meetings law,
Government Code §54950-54963) and the California Public Records Act (Government Code
§6250-6276.48). For the Brown Act, the general rule is that legislative bodies of local agencies
(including elected or appointed boards and commissions) must hold their meetings open to the
public and may exclude them only if they identify a specific statutory exemption and meet

10


https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org

other procedural requirements. The law also specifies how and when public notice of meetings
must be given, and what procedures must be followed regarding meetings by teleconference,
etc.

All trustees should be familiar with the provisions of the Brown Act. Of special note: 1) during
meetings, the board may not act on or discuss any item that does not appear on the posted
agenda; and 2) if an agenda item is discussed amongst board members prior to the official
meeting, it could be considered a Brown Act violation if a quorum of the board is involved,
either together or serially.

The Brown Act allows for closed session (non-public) discussion during board meetings of
confidential subjects, such as personnel evaluation or pending litigation, if these subjects are
properly noticed on the agenda. See the Resource Guide for further information. Boards are
advised to seek legal counsel for guidance if questions about Brown Act compliance arise.

Under the California Public Records Act, the public has a right to obtain copies of the minutes of
open meetings, and to inspect any writing or document distributed to members during a
meeting. The board is not required to make audio or video recordings of its meetings, but if it
does, those meetings are also records that must be made available to the public. The public is
not, however, entitled to the minutes or recordings of closed sessions, unless it can be proved
that the session was held in violation of open meetings laws or that the discussion during the
session strayed from the topics listed in the agenda.

Library board members are required by state law to avoid any economic conflicts of interest
and to submit statements of economic interest to the California Fair Political Practices
Commission on a yearly basis. There are other ethics laws that trustees should follow. The Fair
Political Practices Commission offers free online ethics training for local officials which can help
ensure that your board complies with legal requirements. The California State Association of
Counties offers free and low-cost training and resources on state ethics and sunshine laws.

Governing board trustees, as they have direct responsibility for hiring and disciplining the
library director, should receive sexual harassment training as mandated by law for California
supervisors (two hours every two years) and the board should have a sexual harassment
prevention policy. The California Department of Fair Employment and Housing offers free
sexual harassment training that satisfies the state’s legal requirements.

Trustees may be required to take this training in the course of their regular employment or as
members of other boards. In this case, they should supply the board with certificates of training
completion.

Federal laws.

Library boards must also avoid taking actions that violate rights guaranteed by the federal
constitution or federal law. Many federal laws affect public libraries (see Resource Guide). In
particular the board should seek legal advice before taking actions that may involve federal
discrimination laws, employment laws, and intellectual freedom rights guaranteed by the First

11


https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org
https://localethics.fppc.ca.gov/login.aspx
https://www.counties.org/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB778
https://www.dfeh.ca.gov/shpt/
https://www.dfeh.ca.gov/shpt/
https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org

and Fourth Amendments. The board should be generally aware of these laws and exercise
caution.

Board liability.

Depending on the type of board (governing or advisory) and its legal and implied powers, a
given board may have lesser or greater exposure to liability. California Government Code §814-
827 covers the liability of public agencies and officials. In California the doctrine of sovereign
immunity applies except as otherwise provided by statute, meaning that public library boards
and trustees are generally not subject to liability related to the performance of their official
duties. But trustee and/or board liability is still possible for intentional or careless injuries or
damages, illegal use of public funds or authority, ethics and conflict-of-interest law violations,
California Public Records and Brown Act infractions, and failure to comply with federal
discrimination, employment, and intellectual freedom laws.

Trustees can greatly reduce the possibility of liability as follows:

e Learn about the various laws that may apply to library board actions and library
operations. Complete any required training.

e Vote against any proposed board action that you believe is illegal or improper.

e Vote to table an issue if you believe insufficient information has been provided on which
to form an opinion.

e Act and speak for the library only when authorized to do so by the full board.

e Avoid even the appearance of conflict of interest.

e Consult legal counsel with concerns about any action (or failure to take an action).

e If you suspect conflict of interest on the board, submit a written protest to the board
president.

The board should make certain that it is protected by liability insurance (boards are usually
covered by the library’s insurance).

Library values.

Library boards should endorse and adhere to the national library values regarding intellectual
freedom, diversity and inclusion, and confidentiality and privacy expressed by the American
Library Association (ALA). These are summarized in the Library Bill of Rights. ALA has also issued
official interpretations of these rights that guide the application of these principles to specific
library practices in areas such as access to digital resources, services for minors and LBGTQIA
communities, economic barriers to information access, and lifelong learning.

Additional values statements issued by ALA regarding intellectual freedom include the Freedom
to Read and the Freedom to View. Public libraries are often on the front lines protecting First
and Fourth Amendment rights. Private groups and even public authorities may work to remove
or limit access to reading materials, to censor content, to label “controversial” views, to
distribute lists of “objectionable” books or authors, to purge libraries, and to divulge user
information. These actions threaten our national and state tradition of free expression. An
essential mission for public libraries has always been education, the communication and

12


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.6.&title=1.&part=2.&chapter=1.&article=2.&goUp=Y
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.6.&title=1.&part=2.&chapter=1.&article=2.&goUp=Y
https://www.ala.org/advocacy/intfreedom/librarybill
https://www.ala.org/advocacy/intfreedom/librarybill/interpretations
https://www.ala.org/advocacy/intfreedom/freedomreadstatement
https://www.ala.org/advocacy/intfreedom/freedomreadstatement
https://www.ala.org/advocacy/intfreedom/freedomviewstatement

dissemination of ideas. As representatives of the public interest, trustees should recognize
there is no place for censorship in a free society.

Library Bill of Rights. The American Library Association affirms that all libraries are forums for
information and ideas, and that the following basic policies should guide their services.

VL.

VII.

Books and other library resources should be provided for the interest, information, and
enlightenment of all people of the community the library serves. Materials should not
be excluded because of the origin, background, or views of those contributing to their
creation.

Libraries should provide materials and information presenting all points of view on
current and historical issues. Materials should not be proscribed or removed because of
partisan or doctrinal disapproval.

Libraries should challenge censorship in the fulfillment of their responsibility to provide
information and enlightenment.

Libraries should cooperate with all persons and groups concerned with resisting
abridgment of free expression and free access to ideas.

A person’s right to use a library should not be denied or abridged because of origin, age,
background, or views.

Libraries which make exhibit spaces and meeting rooms available to the public they
serve should make such facilities available on an equitable basis, regardless of the
beliefs or affiliations of individuals or groups requesting their use.

All people, regardless of origin, age, background, or views, possess a right to privacy and
confidentiality in their library use. Libraries should advocate for, educate about, and
protect people’s privacy, safeguarding all library use data, including personally
identifiable information.

Finally, library boards should embrace guidelines and best practices for trustee professional and
ethical conduct (from United for Libraries):

Trustees shall respect the opinions of their colleagues and not be critical or disrespectful
when they disagree or oppose a viewpoint different than their own.

Trustees shall comply with all the laws, rules and regulations that apply to them and to
their library.

Trustees, in fulfilling their responsibilities, shall not be swayed by partisan interests,
public pressure or fear of criticism.

Trustees shall not engage in discrimination of any kind and shall uphold library patrons’
rights to privacy in the use of library resources.

Trustees must distinguish clearly in their actions and statements between their personal
philosophies and attitudes and those of the library, acknowledging and supporting the
formal position of the Board even if they disagree.

Trustees must respect the confidential nature of library business and not disclose such

information to anyone.
13


https://www.ala.org/united/sites/ala.org.united/files/content/trustees/orgtools/Ethics%20Statement.pdf

Working professionally:

Listen more than you speak and respect the advice and opinions of other trustees
Support the board’s decisions in public, even if you don’t personally agree

Support decisions made before you came to the board

Respect the confidentiality of closed board sessions

Attend all meetings

Complete assigned work

Trustees must also be aware of and in compliance with sunshine laws

Trustees must avoid situations in which personal interests might be served or financial
benefits gained from their position or access to privileged library information, for either
themselves or others.

Trustees shall immediately disqualify themselves when a conflict of interest exists (or
the appearance of).

Trustees shall not use their position to gain unwarranted privileges or advantages for
themselves or others from the library or from those who do business with the library.
Trustees shall not interfere with the management responsibilities of the director or the
supervision of library staff.

Trustees shall support the efforts of librarians in resisting censorship of library materials
by groups or individuals.

Boards should formally adopt these principles into an ethics policy and include them in an oath
of office for new trustees.

Ask yourself (Principle 3):

What is the general rule for open meetings in California?

Have you taken any training on California ethics laws? On sexual harassment?
What tools can you use to learn about how your board should work?

Why is it important to prepare for board meetings?

What should be considered when recruiting new trustees?

What is the Library Bill of Rights? Why is it important?

Name at least three best practices for trustee professional conduct. How does your
board deal with unprofessional conduct?

Principle 4.
Trustees should understand and collaborate to carry out the responsibilities of the library
board regarding planning, leadership, policy, and budgeting.

Public library boards share a duty to represent the people and to collaborate to deliver the best
possible library services for their communities. Board responsibilities vary by jurisdiction, but
their common duties relate to library planning, leadership, policy, and budgeting. The following
are the main responsibilities of the library board:

14



a. To learn the needs, aspirations, and strengths of the community that the library
serves and use this information to evaluate and plan library services

b. To hire and evaluate the library director (or assist in the process)
c. To develop and adopt policies (or make recommendations to the governing board)
d. To approve/monitor the library budget and finances (or assist in the process)

“Yes, great libraries require financial support, but even more than that they require open
communication about your needs, your challenges, and your dreams.” R. David Lankes,
Expect More: Demanding Better Libraries for Today’s Complex World, 2nd Edition, 2016.

4a. To learn the needs, aspirations, and strengths of the community that the library serves
and use this information to evaluate and plan library services.

If library services are developed and implemented without reference to what the local
community needs, wants or aspires to, they will likely not succeed overall. This seems obvious
but service organizations traditionally are inward-focused, looking at how they can expand and
market what they have in place rather than learning about their communities and developing
services based on that knowledge. The temptation that board members and library staff face is
to create and lobby for services that are personally interesting or nostalgic for them. Services
implemented without regard to community needs, desires, strengths, and assets run the risk of
being irrelevant or even disrespectful to the community, and/or replicating what is already
being done by others.

As public libraries look at pushing their boundaries to fulfill a broader mission, it is critical that
they recognize that they can do this most effectively through partnerships. Partnerships require
that libraries establish ties with other community organizations. Community connection and
knowledge are critical to effective library services, and this knowledge should serve as the
underpinning for everything done by the library and the board.

Recent national and state efforts to offer libraries and their boards the tools they need to
understand their communities and build library services based on that understanding include:

e Turning Outward and Harwood Public Innovation for California’s Libraries. In 2014 the
American Library Association partnered with the renowned Harwood Institute for Public
Innovation to offer training and tools to strengthen libraries’ role as community leaders
and change agents, using the Institute’s Turning Outward approach to community
engagement. This led to statewide trainings in many states, including California, and the
development of California-specific Harwood resources.

e Aspen Institute Dialogue on Public Libraries. The Aspen Institute developed its Dialogue
on Public Libraries to create a framework for libraries to connect with community
stakeholders and showcase models on how community leaders can leverage libraries as
platforms for building more knowledgeable, healthy and sustainable communities.

15


https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/harwood/
https://www.aspeninstitute.org/tag/dialogue-on-public-libraries/
https://www.aspeninstitute.org/tag/dialogue-on-public-libraries/

Several California libraries have held regional dialogues in partnership with the Aspen
Institute, see the Resources Guide for more information.

e Research Institute for Public Libraries (RIPL). RIPL is an ongoing national initiative to
provide training and tools to create a culture shift in which library leaders become
purposeful in gathering, analyzing, and using data for decision making, strategic
planning, and demonstrating impact. RIPL trainings are periodically held in California
and national webinars and workshops are available.

e Data sources. Sources for free demographic data for California communities include the
U.S. Census, the California Department of Finance, the California Employment
Development Department, and the California State Association of Counties. Commercial
products used by many California public libraries include Gale Analytics and Tableau.
Other data tools for library evaluation include Edge (Urban Libraries Council—California
public libraries have free access through the State Library), Project Qutcome (Public
Library Association) and free public library data from the federal Institute of Museum
and Library Services and the California State Library. The State Library offers support for
libraries in utilizing the state data resources available to them.

More information about these sources and the others listed above is included in the Resource
Guide.

The library director, library staff and the board should continually work together to ensure that
library services are evaluated and planned based on community needs and aspirations. Trustees
must endeavor to connect with stakeholders on a regular basis, to learn about the community,
to foster the relationships needed to create partnerships, and to position themselves to provide
critical information about library services, address misperceptions and clarify community
benefits.

Developing and maintaining relationships with a diversity of stakeholders will help trustees
learn more about what library users (and potential users) need and want from their community
and their library. This information will be beneficial when the board adds or updates library
policies, makes decisions about library services, and plans the library’s future. It will also help
the community and its leaders understand what the library provides and what its possibilities
are, and lay the groundwork for community partnerships.

Trustees will have many formal and informal opportunities to connect with the community: at
the grocery store, at civic or social group meetings, at the farmers market, within the
workplace. Trustees should be prepared to elicit information from the public and hear what
people have to say about what kind of community they want to live in, about their needs and
aspirations, and about the library and its services.

The knowledge gained from community connection should be incorporated into creating or
updating the library’s formal strategic plan. A strategic plan, including a vision and mission,
creates a map for the library’s journey rather than a rigid policy, identifying where to invest
resources for maximum community benefit and impact. By an intensive effort to determine the
specific needs, wants and strengths of the community during a formal strategic planning
process, the library and the board can create a plan for tailored services and programs to best
16


https://www.ripleffect.org/
https://www.libraryedge.org/about-edge
https://www.ala.org/pla/data/performancemeasurement
https://www.imls.gov/research-evaluation/data-collection/public-libraries-survey
https://www.imls.gov/research-evaluation/data-collection/public-libraries-survey
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/statistics/
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/statistics/
https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org
https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org

fulfill those needs. Strategic planning will help identify the library’s strengths and untapped
opportunities, and ways to capitalize on existing community assets through partnership.

There are many ways to approach creating/updating a strategic plan. United for Libraries has
created a practical guide for strategic planning. Many public libraries and library boards opt to
use a consultant for strategic planning processes. The board can consult with neighboring
libraries for recommendations through their cooperative library system, or through listservs or
consultant directories. More guides and other tools for library evaluation and planning are
available through the Resource Guide.

Ask yourself (Principle 4a):
e What should serve as the foundation for everything done by the library and the board?
Why?

e What can you do to gather knowledge about your community?
e Does your library have a strategic plan? If so, what are its goals? What is your library’s
mission and vision?

4b. To hire and evaluate the library director (or assist in the process).

Hiring the library director.

Library boards must make sure the library operates well and in the best interest of those the
library serves. The board must work to hire a qualified director to manage the day-to-day
operations of the library. Selecting a competent library director is the single most important act
undertaken by the board, as the director makes decisions that significantly impact the quality of
library services and the library’s financial future. The board is charged with selecting the best
person possible to make those decisions or, in the case of advisory boards, assisting the
governing body to do so.

In California, board responsibility for selecting a library director varies. Special library district
governing boards have the power to act unilaterally in selecting the library director. Charter city
governing boards have authority to appoint the library director. In most smaller city libraries
operating under the general law, the library director serves at the pleasure of the city council or
city manager. County librarians are appointed by the county administrator or board of
supervisors. Depending on local practice, advisory boards may participate in the selection of the
library director, and their involvement is important, as they are in a position to contribute a
deeper knowledge of the library and the community.

The process of hiring a director is a joint venture with local governmental officials and human
resources departments. Trustees should be aware of applicable laws and regulations and
competitive salaries and benefits. The board should work closely with local government to
assure effective communication and compliance with local hiring rules and regulations. The
board should clarify, with local governmental officials and staff, the appropriate roles,
responsibilities, and lines of authority for the recruitment, hiring process, timetable, and salary.

17


https://www.ala.org/united/sites/ala.org.united/files/content/trusteezone/practical-guides/strategic-planning.pdf
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/ca-library-services-act/
https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org

There are many authoritative, comprehensive resources available related to hiring a library
director. The following is a general overview of the process:

e Appoint a search committee to develop the recruitment package. This could include
developing or revising the job description, considering how best to promote the
recruitment, and determining the strengths, qualities, and attributes of the idea direct.
Conduct an exit interview with the outgoing director. What expertise is needed to fulfill
the library’s mission, vision, and strategic plan?

(Note: many organizations use recruiters to facilitate the search process, and this is
something that the board may consider. The board may consult with other libraries
through their cooperative library system for recommendations on recruiters, if needed).

e Inthe case where the library director is a city or county employee, it will be up to that
government to advertise formally for the position, but the board can make the vacancy
known and encourage applicants. The position should at a minimum be posted on the
listserv managed by the California Library Association and other free or low-cost
resources for advertising library director positions both within California and nationally.
Announcements should include the job title, duties, qualifications, salary, application
timeline, highlights about the community and a contact person.

e Agree in advance on the methods for screening, ranking, requesting references, and
evaluating applicants. The board or board committee then checks applicant references,
evaluates qualifications, and arranges interviews with promising candidates, again
considering the qualities needed to fulfill the library’s mission, vision, and strategic plan.
A uniform list of questions should be developed for both the interviews and for
contacting references. These questions should be reviewed by someone knowledgeable
about employment and discrimination law.

e Once candidates have been selected for interviewing, prepare for interviews. Consider
sending background information on the library and community to the final candidates,
to include the library strategic plan, policy manual, and budgets for the last several
years.

e Follow the list of questions created earlier with opportunities for additional questions as
conversation dictates. Be careful, however, to follow the rules and procedures for
interviews established by the local government, to avoid any issues with discrimination.
The interview is a mutual evaluation process. The search committee/board should share
with all candidates the negative, as well as the positive, aspects of the position.

e After completing the interviews, the board or committee meets to review the interviews
and references, discuss responses, and rank the candidates in order of preference. Once
a decision is made, the successful candidate is officially notified. A written notice that
includes agreed-upon title, salary, employment conditions and deadlines is very
important. The candidate should also reply in writing. Once the chosen candidate has
accepted, other candidates should be notified at once. If there is no strong candidate,
recruitment should reopen.

e Introduce the new director to board members, the staff, appropriate community
leaders, and government officials. Arrange news releases and consider a library open
house reception. Create an onboarding package for the new director, including

18


https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/ca-library-services-act/
https://www.cla-net.org/page/177

background information, policies, budgets, minutes, manuals, reports, and measurable
milestones for three months, six months and one year.

e Depending on local practices there may be a probationary period for the new director,
generally lasting from six months to one year. Probation is usually considered an
extension of the hiring process, during which an employee can be more easily released.
Provisions for probationary periods are often written into collective bargaining
agreements which may cover the director’s position, and the board should be aware of
these provisions. Again, the board should adhere to the jurisdiction’s practices regarding
probation.

Pitfalls to avoid:

J Hiring to the weaknesses or strengths of the former director (evaluate candidates on
their own merits)

J Rushing to fill the position

J Taking the easy way out (promoting an internal candidate without a complete
search process)

J Being penny-wise and pound foolish (take time in the hiring process and offer a
good compensation package)

J Assuming all candidates are 100% candid (conduct thorough reference and
background checks)

J Putting too much emphasis on technical abilities. A library director should be more

than a good librarian. Great library directors are visionary leaders that communicate
well with the board, staff, and community leaders.

In the probationary process, each measurable milestone as mentioned above should include
documentation of goals met as well as adjustments and corrections if they are changed. To
ensure that the new director is performing as expected, agendized, closed-session reviews
should be held quarterly during board meetings using appropriate Brown Act language
(example: PERFORMANCE EVALUATION [Government Code Section 54957] Title: Library
Director).

Without a formal evaluation process, there is no concrete way for directors to know if they are
meeting or exceeding expectations. Similarly, without the formal evaluation process, library
boards may be letting troublesome issues become worse, and they also lose an important
opportunity to put their appreciation of performance in writing.

Adapted from Short Takes for Trustees, Evaluating the Library Director, United for Libraries,
2014.

Evaluating the library director.

A formal evaluation process provides the director with necessary feedback on job performance.
It can be a tool for motivation, encouragement, coaching and direction. The process can

19



provide the board with valuable information about the operations and performance of the
library and help establish a record of unsatisfactory performance if there is cause for discipline
or termination. It can also give the board and the director an opportunity to evaluate the
director’s job description and adjust it if necessary.

The evaluation process should not be ignored. It protects both the director and the board in
disciplinary cases. While most library director positions in California are FLSA (Fair Labor
Standards Act) exempt and the incumbents serve at-will, it is not advisable for the board to
simply terminate a director. This is because there are many grounds for wrongful termination
lawsuits, including discrimination, retaliation, or violations of specific statutes or public policies.
The board must be able to document that misconduct or performance issues occurred and that
the director was put on notice of them as they occurred, to help avoid later claims that the
termination was motivated by discrimination or other wrongful grounds.

There are a variety of evaluation methods with a wide range of criteria (see Resources Guide).
The method of evaluation chosen should reflect local circumstances. Boards should work with
local officials and human resources staff to ensure that their evaluation method conforms to
local practices.

A formal method usually begins with the director and the board working together to develop a
list of performance criteria based on goal completion, linked to the library’s strategic plan. Once
criteria are set, the library director should periodically report to the board on progress toward
meeting performance objectives and priorities, which may be adjusted periodically according to
the library’s changing situation.

Ask yourself (Principle 4b):

e Name some pitfalls to avoid in hiring a library director.

e What are the current goals set by your board for the library director?

e How does a formal evaluation process for the library director benefit and protect the
board? The director? The library?

A formal evaluation review should be held yearly. The board may request that the library
director provide an annual summary including goals, accomplishments, and challenges, as a
template for the board’s review. The board should reward good performance or work to
correct inadequate performance.

Evaluation should be continuous. Performance problems with the director should be discussed
at the time that they arise, along with possible solutions, rather than wait for the formal review.

4c. To develop and adopt policies (or make recommendations to the governing board).

Policies are important tools used by library trustees and staff to provide effective service to the
community. Policies reflect the library’s philosophy of service and explain the reasons for

20



setting rules and limitations. A fair amount of the library board’s time will be spent considering,
revising, and adopting (or recommending the adoption of) library policies.

A set of well-defined, well-written, reasonable, and current policies is important to a public
library, because they form the framework of the library’s operation. They guide trustees and
staff in carrying out their duties; help ensure quality service to meet community needs;
communicate privileges and duties regarding library use to the public; help ensure fair
treatment of library users and staff; and help ensure conformity to local, state, and federal
laws.

Policy making is an organizational rather than a management tool, and works best with the
involvement of trustees, library director and staff. The director can provide a foundation for the
issue so the board can have a knowledgeable discussion. Staff can be given the responsibility to
provide options, draft recommendations, and present them to the board for discussion and
approval.

In creating or reviewing policies, the following questions should be considered:

e How does this policy contribute to the mission and goals of the library?

e What needs and reasons are there to change this policy or make a new one?

e What are the possible positive and negative effects?

e What are the estimated costs of implementing the policy (staff resources, building and
equipment requirements)?

e How will the public perceive this policy?

e What are the legal implications of enacting and implementing the policy?

e s the policy realistically enforceable? (If it can’t be enforced, it shouldn’t be put in
writing.)

Ask yourself (Principle 4c):
e Why are library policies important?
e What factors should be considered in setting policies for the library?
e Who should be involved in policy development?
e When should policies be vetted by legal counsel?

Policies must be legally defensible. A legally defensible policy complies with current local, state,
and federal laws; is reasonable; is clearly written and understandable; is publicly available for
review and reference; is applied without discrimination; and is consistent with the library’s
mission, vision, and strategic plan. The most common public challenges to policies are aimed at
collections and internet use but making sure that every policy is legally defensible will protect
the library and jurisdiction against liability. New policies and policy changes should be vetted by
legal counsel before any final board discussion and approval.

Referring to the policies of other libraries for examples can be particularly useful when
developing new policies or considering policy changes.

21



4d. To approve/monitor the library budget and finances (or assist in the process).

In California library boards have varying responsibilities regarding the library’s finances and
budget. Governing boards are legally responsible for the library’s budget and library financial
oversight, while advisory boards do not have legal mandates for budget development or fiscal
control. Depending on local practice, advisory boards do, however, often advise the library
director and the governing body on budget proposals and finances.

All trustees should know where the money comes from and how much revenue can be built
into the budget each year. A good understanding of revenue sources is important, as board
members must encourage continued funding from those sources and identify new sources
when needed.

Local finances.

Most California public libraries work on annual budgets based on city or county allocations, or
property or parcel tax allocations. The county law libraries are an exception, as they are funded
through a portion of civil filing fees, meaning these libraries are largely supported by civil
litigants and not by state and local taxes. Library friends/foundations groups raise money for
library enhancements and programs. The California State Library’s publication, California Public
Library Organization, provides a useful overview of operational and capital funding by public
library type.

State level support.

The State Library administers a number of state and federally funded financial support
programs for California public libraries, including funding for cooperative library systems
through the California Library Services Act, funding for literacy programs through the California
Library Literacy Services Program, grant programs funded by federal Library Services and
Technology Act and American Rescue Plan Act monies, and state funding for special initiatives
such as broadband and library construction. The State Library also manages the California
Grants Portal, a searchable database for competitive grant opportunities offered by California
state agencies.

Federal and private support.

While the State Library manages the bulk of federal aid for libraries in California, libraries can
apply directly to the federal Institute of Museum and Library Services for selected grant
opportunities. Additional sources for learning about federal and foundation grant funding
include the comprehensive federal website Grants.Gov, National Endowment for the
Humanities grants, and the Foundation Directory Online.

Budgeting. A budget is a plan for the expenditure of funds for the next year to carry out the
library’s operation. The amount of funds available will dictate the extent to which the library
can carry out its mission.

22


https://www.library.ca.gov/Content/pdf/services/toLibraries/CAPubLibOrg_2013.pdf
https://www.library.ca.gov/Content/pdf/services/toLibraries/CAPubLibOrg_2013.pdf
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/
https://www.grants.ca.gov/
https://www.grants.ca.gov/
https://www.imls.gov/grants/grant-programs
https://www.grants.gov/
https://www.neh.gov/grants
https://www.neh.gov/grants
https://fconline.foundationcenter.org/

The board is responsible for ensuring that public funds are used in the community’s best
interests and that the library has adequate financing for its programs and services. The budget
plan should be clear, accurate, consistent, and comprehensive. Be aware that most governing
bodies have policies that require that funds be held in reserve for capital replacement, to
minimize adverse impacts from unanticipated expenditures, and to strengthen the financial
stability of the library. This requirement must be observed as the budget is developed each
year.

Depending on the type and size of the public library, its revenue streams, and local laws and
practices, the board’s involvement in the budget process varies from simple to complex. Here
are some scenarios:

e Scenario 1: City library (advisory board). The city budgets on a two-year cycle but each
year the board of trustees reviews the library’s budget prior to its adoption by the city
council. The budget is divided into program areas such as technical services, adult
services, or administration. Each program area has defined objectives and associated
tasks. The budget is broken down to indicate the costs for each task.

After the budget has been distributed to the city council and to city departments, a
budget workshop is presented, open to staff and the public, in which the city manager
reviews the critical factors that were considered as the budget was prepared. The library
director, after attending the workshop, highlights the issues related to the library’s
current or future funding. This information is put into a “budget notebook” for the
library board’s review.

At the next board meeting the director reviews the budget notebook information and
answers questions for the board. It is the director’s responsibility to ensure the budget
is adequate to meet the library’s objectives. The board’s role is to focus on the services
offered by the library and make recommendations for changes to the city council if they
feel the planned services do not meet community needs.

e Scenario 2: Independent special district library (governing board). A special district
library begins by determining what funds are available for budgeting, by estimating its
revenue for the following fiscal year and the amount of funding (if any) which will be
carried over from the current year (a special district library’s carryover funds remain
available for its use, as they do not revert to a county or city general fund). The library
director then estimates the cost of maintaining the current level of services and that of
additional services and prepares a summary of the budget information for the library
board. The board reviews the budget and approves or requests changes. The budget is
then finalized. While there may still be a requirement for the budget to be submitted to
the county board of supervisors or county manager, that body’s review is typically
minimal, where the library is a special district with its own governance and defined
revenue.

e Scenario 3: Joint powers agreement (JPA) library (governing board). The budget is
approved and submitted by a governing board, established under a JPA, among the

23



jurisdictions, possibly various cities and the county served, to operate the public library.
In some JPAs the governing board has full authority in all matters of library governance,
but its annual budget is subject to approval by the county board of supervisors. In
others, the full authority rests with the JPA Board, which could include all members of
the county board of supervisors as well as other elected officials.

The steps in the budgeting process (assuming a July-June fiscal year) might include:

o Appointing a budget-audit committee to work closely with the library director
and appropriate staff. The role of the budget-audit committee is to review and
critique the work done by staff, including the current year’s revenues,
expenditures, summary, and projections. Staff may present budget assumptions
for the next fiscal year, covering possible changes in facilities, services, and
staffing.

o The committee raises questions and makes suggestions to guide the library
director in setting specific budget allocations.

o The budget-audit committee will review the library’s preliminary budget and the
full board will adopt at its regular May meeting.

o The entire board stays informed, through the library director, of the ongoing
issues and reports on any significant changes that arise in revenue and
expenditure projections.

The timeline for a JPA annual budget cycle might look like this:
o May -- Approve the preliminary budget to begin the fiscal year on July 1
o September -- Approve the true-up of revenues and budget corrections, note
grants received, approve new positions, and codify any needed changes
o February — Approve any mid-year changes to ensure that the budget is on track

e Scenario 4: City library (governing board). The library board delegates the development
and administration of the budget to the city librarian but determines the budget
priorities for the next fiscal year. The city librarian and staff prepare the draft budget
with direction from the library board, with fiscal guidelines provided by the city council
and city manager. Capital and major maintenance projects have discrete timelines and
preparation guidelines. The entire draft budget goes to the library board for change or
approval before it is sent on to the city. Once the board approves the budget, it is sent
to the city manager or finance department for approval. Any city changes to the budget
must go to the library board for approval, and if the library board does not agree, they
must file a variance and challenge the change at the city’s budget hearings.

Budgeting guidelines for trustees (Council of State Library Agencies)

e Know who does what (board authority and responsibility in the budget planning
process)

e Understand the planning context (the budget is a tool for accomplishing specific
objectives that reflect the vision, mission and strategic plan of the library)

e Give the process time (allow for time to develop the budget and for consideration by

the local funding authorities)
24



e Be realistic (understand the community climate and competing demands for funding)

e Seek additional funding if needed (grants, donations, sponsors, partnerships)

e Keep it simple and truthful (the library and its needs should be easily understood)

e Read, listen, and learn (determine what the funding agency is looking for and what
impresses them)

e Present the budget (show budget base, increases and effects of decreases, state
community value)

Budget monitoring.

The board monitors library finances by helping develop, review, oversee and approve library
expenditures to the extent allowed under its legal and implied powers, and develops and
adopts (or advises on) policies for handling gifts and donations. The library director typically
reports on expenditures and budget status at each board meeting.

Ask yourself (Principle 4d):

e Where does your library’s funding come from?

e How involved should your board be in developing the budget?
e Where can you find information about grants?

e Why is the board’s active support for the budget so important?

Board engagement.

The board should recognize that the library and library director need its engagement and
support in budgetary matters. In California, library directors are usually government employees
that report to the city or county and as such must remain neutral in budget deliberations. As
trustees directly represent the people concerning library governance, they have the more
tenable position to communicate with local officials on behalf of the library’s budget. Trustees
can interpret the library’s plans for local leaders, explain how budget changes help the library
align with community priorities, and interact to provide information about budget proposals in
ways that the library director and staff cannot. Trustees have a duty to work to improve the
library’s services and they are uniquely positioned to represent the library in the budget
process.

Principle 5.
Trustees should recognize the importance of orientation and continuing education for the
library board and participate in ongoing learning opportunities.

“Trustees are at the heart of a library’s relationship with its community. They should be your
most informed stewards of growth and success.” — Northeast Ohio Regional Library System

For the library board to fully accomplish its mission and responsibilities, it must have broad
knowledge of, and commitment to, to the library’s mission, goals, plans and programs and the
25



public needs and aspirations they should address. Trustees must work to create a culture of
learning for the board, to develop deeper awareness of their public library and the library
world. The public library is a complex organization functioning in a complicated world. Public
libraries are continually adapting and changing, and the board must do also, by learning about
public libraries and about their own library and community and being open to change and to
new ideas.

A first step in creating a culture of learning is to ensure that new trustees have the information
they need to be successful from the start, through an effective orientation process. This
orientation should ideally take place before the new trustee’s first meeting and should include
a packet of information with the following:

e Library mission, vision, strategic plan, budget, latest annual report if available
e Board bylaws

e Trustee job description

e Board meeting schedule and important dates

e Review of educational resources (including this guide)

The board should dedicate itself to a continuous learning process. Setting aside time for
learning at board meetings can be a very effective way to accomplish this. Sessions might
include a brief training video or webinar or a presentation on a new library service or new
trend.

Trustees should seek out educational opportunities through their library director, and also from
connection with state and national organizations such as the California Library Association, the
California State Library, and United for Libraries. Having the opportunity to network with
others regionally and nationally will help trustees understand the context in which the library
operates and their own roles and responsibilities.

There are many free resources available on public trusteeship and board development, as well
as public library operation and management. Trustees should also ask their library director to
let them know about articles or books that may be important to their understanding of the
library and its social/political context. Organizations concerned with non-profit administration
and management, such as BoardSource and the National Council on Nonprofits, offer helpful
information and resources.

The board and individual trustees should consider joining United for Libraries. While some of
the resources that United for Libraries offers are free, many valuable learning tools are for
members only. These include Short Takes for Trustees, designed for boards to use for training
during meetings, and a national online trustee discussion forum, which many find an invaluable
resource for learning about best practices, connecting with other trustees on specific questions
and issues, and for discovering new resources and learning opportunities for library trustees.

Events such as webinars, workshops, and conferences provide excellent opportunities for
continuing education, both from the subject matter and from the opportunity to meet and

26


https://www.cla-net.org/page/140
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/
https://www.ala.org/united/
http://www.boardsource.org/
http://councilofnonprofits.org/
https://www.ala.org/united/membership/howtojoin
https://www.ala.org/united/training/short_takes
https://www.ala.org/united/trustees/forum

share experiences and ideas with other trustees. Trustees should consider attending the
California Library Association’s annual meeting and work to include conference programming
on trusteeship. At the national level, United for Libraries offers a program track for trustees at
the annual ALA Conference.

Some boards may be reluctant to approve registration fees and travel expenses for continuing
education, because of financial constraints or possible public misperceptions. But these
expenses are essential. The board should have a written policy on board training and budget
enough funding each year to ensure that trustees can take full advantage of educational
opportunities and remain aware of new trends and best practices for libraries. This is an
important investment in the library's future and demonstrates good financial stewardship.

To identify where to focus its continuing education efforts, the library board should make the
time to evaluate its own performance. This is an opportunity to celebrate what is going well and
to look at how things could go better. Not only should the board evaluate its performance as a
whole, but trustees should also evaluate themselves individually, against the duties and
responsibilities covered in this guide well as against the board’s bylaws, policies, and
procedures. Is the board helping to move the library forward? Are board operations efficient? Is
there additional education or support that will help trustees to feel confident and comfortable
in their roles? The Resource Guide includes sample evaluation tools for library boards and
trustees.

Conclusion

Public libraries are essential to California’s citizens. The local public library is a gateway for
intellectual curiosity, learning, and self-actualization in nearly every California community. It
enhances the quality of individual and community life and provides pathways to success. As one
of the most credible public institutions in our country, the inclusion and engagement of the
public library is critical to producing successful community solutions for local issues.

As stated in the beginning, public library boards of trustees are essential to the success of
California’s public libraries. They help to see that the library delivers the best library services,
has a top-notch director, follows excellent policies and practices, and keeps an eye to the
future. California’s citizens and communities owe a debt of gratitude to those who volunteer
their dedication, time, and talents to serve as library trustees. Trustees should know that they
are making a real difference in their communities, and their efforts are reflected in every book
that gets checked out, every program that is attended, every service the library offers, and in
the support they show in the guidance of their library directors.

27


https://yolocountyorg-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jcoles_yolocounty_org/Documents/Desktop/calibtrustees.org

Agenda ltem 5b

Date: December 11, 2025

To: Library Board of Trustees
From: Christine Watson, City Librarian
Subject: Willows Public Library Update

Recommendation:

Discuss the achievements and goals for the Willows Public Library for the next 60 days.

Rationale for Recommendation:

Regular updates given to ensure the Willows Library Board of Trustees are aware of the progress and
needs of the City Librarian in regard to library strategic planning.

Background:

The City Librarian informed board members of the status of several state and local grants for Willows
Public Library (WPL). Additionally, the City Librarian informed the board of their concerns around
library acquisitions and gave an update on the progress of the renovation in the library backroom. A
comprehensive review of the library's program, circulation, and budget data was provided and
discussed at length with the board. Lastly, the City Librarian reviewed areas of need which would need
to be addressed when time is allowed. In conjunction with the update, the City Librarian also reviewed
all proposed technology updates for the library potentially using Impact Fees, which would later go
before the City Council.

Discussion & Analysis:

The City Library will inform the members of the board on the status of grants, library data and budgets,
as well as goals for the next 60 days.

Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact by discussing the progress and goals of the Willows Public Library.
Attachments:

e Attachment 1: Financial Records for King Trust — Provided by Joanne Financial Director
e Attachment 2: Financial Records for McDole Trust — Provided by Joanne Financial Director
e Attachment 3: Library Update Slides



Account

205 - FRANCIS KING
Revenue

205-000-76600

Post Date Packet Number
10/13/2025 GLPKT01745

City of Willows

Name

INTEREST EARNED

Source Transaction
JNO03152

Attachment 1

Detail vs Budget Report

Account Detail
Date Range: 07/01/2025 - 11/24/2025

Encumbrances Fiscal Budget  Beginning Balance Total Activity Ending Balance Budget Remaining % Remaining
0.00 0.00 0.00 69.92 69.92 -69.92 0.00%
Pmt Number Description Vendor Project Account Amount
Interest Receivable - FY 2024-25 69.92
Revenue Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 69.92 69.92 -69.92 0.00%
205 - FRANCIS KING Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 69.92 69.92 -69.92 0.00%
Report Total: 0.00 0.00 0.00 69.92 69.92 -69.92 0.00%

11/24/2025 1:25:36 PM

Page 1 of 2



Detail vs Budget Report

Fund
205 - FRANCIS KING

Report Total:

Date Range: 07/01/2025 - 11/24/2025
Fund Summary

Encumbrances Fiscal Budget Beginning Balance Total Activity Ending Balance Budget Remaining % Remaining
0.00 0.00 0.00 69.92 69.92 -69.92 0.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 69.92 69.92 -69.92 0.00%

11/24/2025 1:25:36 PM

Page 2 of 2



Fund

205 - FRANCIS KING

City of Willows

Report Total:

Fund Balance Report
As Of 11/24/2025

Beginning Balance Total Revenues Total Expenses Ending Balance
76,209.26 -69.92 0.00 76,139.34
76,209.26 -69.92 0.00 76,139.34

11/24/2025 1:27:00 PM

Page 1 of 1



Treasurers Report
City of Willows Detail
Date Range: 05/01/2023 - 11/30/2025

Beginning Net Change Net Change Calculated Actual Calculated -

Account Name Cash Balance Revenues Expenses Assets Liabilities Ending Balance Ending Balance Actual Ending
205 - FRANCIS KING
Beginning Cash Balance
205-000-10000 CLAIM ON CASH 72,841.90 3,297.44 3,297.44
205-000-20101 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PENDING 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Beginning Cash Balance: 72,841.90 3,297.44 3,297.44
Actual Ending Cash Balance
205-000-10000 CLAIM ON CASH 76,139.34
205-000-20101 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PENDING 0.00
Fund 205 - FRANCIS KING Total: 72,841.90 75,272.81 0.00 3,297.44 3,297.44 141,519.83 76,139.34 65,380.49

11/24/2025 1:33:09 PM Page 1 of 2



Treasurers Report

Fund
205 - FRANCIS KING

Report Total:

Date Range: 05/01/2023 - 11/30/2025

Summary

Beginning Net Change Net Change Calculated Actual Calculated -
Cash Balance Revenues Expenses Assets Liabilities Ending Balance Ending Balance Actual Ending
72,841.90 75,272.81 0.00 3,297.44 3,297.44 141,519.83 76,139.34 65,380.49
72,841.90 75,272.81 0.00 3,297.44 3,297.44 141,519.83 76,139.34 65,380.49

11/24/2025 1:33:09 PM

Page 2 of 2



Attachment 2

Detail vs Budget Report

City of Willows Account Detail
Date Range: 07/01/2025 - 11/24/2025
Account Name Encumbrances Fiscal Budget  Beginning Balance Total Activity Ending Balance Budget Remaining % Remaining
204 - MCDOLE TRUST LIBRARY
Revenue
204-000-76600 INTEREST EARNED 0.00 0.00 0.00 48.26 48.26 -48.26 0.00%
Post Date Packet Number Source Transaction Pmt Number Description Vendor Project Account Amount
10/13/2025  GLPKT01745 JN03152 Interest Receivable - FY 2024-25 48.26
Revenue Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 48.26 48.26 -48.26 0.00%
Expense
204-000-49999 TRUST FUND EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 332.73 332.73 -332.73 0.00%
Post Date Packet Number Source Transaction Pmt Number Description Vendor Project Account Amount
09/09/2025  APPKT00484 17VR-HRXD-N13C 55929 KIDS SEATING RUG - BOARD TRUST FUND 1052 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 332.73
APPR-LIBRARY
Expense Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 332.73 332.73 -332.73 0.00%
204 - MCDOLE TRUST LIBRARY Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 380.99 380.99 -380.99 0.00%
Report Total: 0.00 0.00 0.00 380.99 380.99 -380.99 0.00%

11/24/2025 1:25:16 PM

Page 1 of 2



Detail vs Budget Report

Fund
204 - MCDOLE TRUST LIBRARY

Report Total:

Date Range: 07/01/2025 - 11/24/2025
Fund Summary

Encumbrances Fiscal Budget Beginning Balance Total Activity Ending Balance Budget Remaining % Remaining
0.00 0.00 0.00 380.99 380.99 -380.99
0.00 0.00 0.00 380.99 380.99 -380.99

11/24/2025 1:25:16 PM

Page 2 of 2



City of Willows

Fund

204 - MCDOLE TRUST LIBRARY

Report Total:

Beginning Balance

50,524.19

Fund Balance Report
As Of 11/24/2025

Total Revenues Total Expenses Ending Balance

-48.26 332.73 50,143.20

50,524.19

-48.26 332.73 50,143.20

11/24/2025 1:26:41 PM

Page 1 of 1



City of Willows

Account Name

204 - MCDOLE TRUST LIBRARY

Beginning Cash Balance

204-000-10000 CLAIM ON CASH

204-000-20101 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PENDING
Total Beginning Cash Balance:

Actual Ending Cash Balance

204-000-10000 CLAIM ON CASH
204-000-20101 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PENDING
Fund 204 - MCDOLE TRUST LIBRARY Total:

Treasurers Report

Detail

Date Range: 05/01/2023 - 11/30/2025

Beginning Net Change Net Change Calculated Actual Calculated -
Cash Balance Revenues Expenses Assets Liabilities Ending Balance Ending Balance Actual Ending
50,355.34 -212.14 -212.14
0.00 0.00 0.00
50,355.34 -212.14 -212.14
50,143.20
0.00
50,355.34 52,695.18 2,553.62 -212.14 -212.14 100,921.18 50,143.20 50,777.98

11/24/2025 1:28:23 PM

Page 1 of 2



Treasurers Report

Fund
204 - MCDOLE TRUST LIBRARY

Report Total:

Date Range: 05/01/2023 - 11/30/2025

Summary

Beginning Net Change Net Change Calculated Actual Calculated -
Cash Balance Revenues Expenses Assets Liabilities Ending Balance  Ending Balance Actual Ending
50,355.34 52,695.18 2,553.62 -212.14 -212.14 100,921.18 50,143.20 50,777.98
50,355.34 52,695.18 2,553.62 -212.14 -212.14 100,921.18 50,143.20 50,777.98

11/24/2025 1:28:23 PM

Page 2 of 2



12/3/2025

Attachment 3

Grants

LIBRARY P PR s i
UPDATE o * i T

‘mﬁy’

o o g arrang techrelo

o (! Mrin

G pogarig ity
o Awdrded $10,000

9/&{‘9& “—E 9/“%9}6 Acquisitions Data .

Acquisitions TR ey
100
223 new materidls added Ovmandis ron requests Chico Barnes & Noble 50
28 catalog by hand purchased New & Popular fitles

Needs: Set up acquisition accounts with the ollowing vendors.
*ngram
« Follett

0
* Mackin S & RN S
* Midwest Library Services 3“‘;{\ @’@ W '@ I 3 ?f.} ‘ﬁ\f d"&“!~ “GF;\ d’f



Karleen Price
Cross-Out


Renovations
« Carpet Installed

* Clean all items

* Unpack storage unit

Goal: utilize the room in the new year for
programming

12/3/2025

P

Storytime
Maker Time

$:105

Average -15

M: 32

Average - 5+

Moviés: 2 events for December

Santa Clavs to visited yesterday

Zip Books 2025

$4,086 lef+t to spend
$665 spent so far
Goals:

Spanish Speakers = 6
Seniors = 7

New Users = 9

Door + Computer Usage

Door and Computer

1§ Door [ Computer
1000

111

o@f'é\""’“fd,ffff




Circulation

S SR

Circulation
W Ou B Renew
800
600
'] —
f‘fffff#',ff/fff
5 5 i
Marketing
Facebook
Googlé calendar
FB Events
School contacts
City Newsletter

NEW: local businesses

12/3/2025

]
M New Patrons

40

Tk

10

offfxwwwfffjf

10

e

Needs

* Full-time Children's Librarian
o Council Approved
* Technology Update using Impact
Fees
o Council Approved

12



COMMENTS AND
REPORTS



	12-11-2025 Library Board Agenda Face.pdf
	5. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR
	All matters on the Discussion & Action Calendar will be discussed and acted on individually. Individuals wishing to speak on any of these items should request to be acknowledged by the Board President. Comments should be directed to the Board of Trust...
	6. COMMENTS & REPORTS

	Public Comment & Consent Calendar Forum
	8 28 2025 Library Board  Minutes Amended
	a. Library Flooring
	b. New Computers
	c. City Librarian Update
	d. Library Consulting
	e. Trust Funds
	f. History of Trust Funds and Use Funds
	g. Library Board Education
	Comments and Reports

	10-16-25  Minutes Willows Library Board of Trustees
	Discussion & Action Calendar
	5a-Library Board Roles 12.11.25 FINAL
	CA 2023 Trustee-Toolkit
	5b-Library Board Update 12.11.25 FINAL
	1. LIBRARY - DETAIL VS BUDGET FUND 205
	1. LIBRARY - FUND BALANCE REPORT 205
	1. LIBRARY - TREASURERS REPORT FUND 205
	2. LIBRARY - DETAIL VS BUDGET FUND 204
	2. LIBRARY - FUND BALANCE REPORT 204
	2. LIBRARY - TREASURERS REPORT FUND 204
	3. Library Update 5b Slides 12.11.25
	Comments & Reports


{"type":"Book","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}




{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}




{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}





